NATIONAL GRIEVANCE
NG-6/11/21
Date: June 11, 2021
To:

Ophelia Ann Vicks
Acting Executive Director
Office of Labor-Management Relations
U.S. Department of Veterans Affairs
ophelia.vicks@va.gov
VALMRLitigation@va.gov
Sent via electronic mail only

From: Christopher Zatratz, Staff Counsel, National Veterans Affairs Council (#53) (“NVAC”),
American Federation of Government Employees, AFL-CIO (“AFGE”)
RE:

National Grievance against the Department of Veterans Affairs for denying requests
to transfer official time
STATEMENT OF CHARGES

Pursuant to the provisions of Article 43, Section 11 of the Master Agreement Between the
Department of Veterans Affairs and the American Federation of Government Employees (2011)
(“MCBA” or “Master Agreement”), the American Federation of Government Employees/National
Veterans Affairs Council (“the Union”) is filing this National Grievance against you and all other
associated officials and/or individuals acting as agents on behalf of the Department of Veterans
Affairs (“Agency”) for denying requests to transfer official time. To date, the Agency has failed
to remedy this violation and as such continues to violate the MCBA.
Specifically, the Agency violated Articles 3, 17, and 48 of the MCBA, and any and all
other relevant articles, laws, regulations, customs, and past practices not herein specified. The
Union specifically reserves the right to supplement this grievance based upon the discovery of new
evidence or information of which it is not presently aware, or otherwise, as necessary.
STATEMENT OF THE CASE
Background
Article 48 of the MCBA authorizes official time for designated union officials at the
national level. See, Article 48, Section 2. The Parties agreed that these allocations of official time
were “reasonable, necessary, and in the public interest.” See Article 48, Section 1(B); 5 U.S.C.
§7131(d). Article 48 also permits these designated union officials to transfer unused portions of
that authorized official time to other union representatives. See id. Various designated AFGE

union officials have submitted requests to the Agency to transfer unused official time to other
union representatives.1 Attachment A. These requests have been improperly denied by the
Agency. Attachment B.
Under Article 48, official time is conferred to the designated union official’s position and
not to the individual union official. This is evident by a plain reading of the provision. Thus,
Article 48 authorizes official time to the position encumbered by the designated union official
irrespective of whether the official is currently employed by the Agency. Here, the Agency
denied requests to transfer official time because the designated union official was “not currently
a government employee.” Attachment B.
To transfer official time authorized under Section 2 of Article 48, the designated union
official must: designate a union representative at their home station and transfer official time to
that representative to perform the duties of the position for which official time is authorized.
Here, in the representative example, District 2 Representative Ena Thompson-Judd is authorized
50% official time under Article 48, Section 2(A)(4). Ms. Thompson-Judd, who is retired from
federal employment, designated Kevin Lapham as a union representative at their home station,
the New York Harbor Healthcare System. Ms. Thompson-Judd transferred the 50% official time
to Mr. Lapham. Accordingly, the transfer fully complies with the Master Agreement.
By failing to approve the transfer of official time, the Agency violated Article 48 of the
MCBA. In doing so, the Agency is in violation of Article 3 of the MCBA, which encourages the
Parties to maintain a cooperative labor-management relationship that is based on mutual respect,
open communication, consideration of each other’s views, and minimizing collective bargaining
disputes. Further, by interfering with the right to union representation, the Agency violated
Article 17 of the MCBA.
Violation
By failing to fulfill its obligations, the Agency violated, and continues to violate, the
following:
• Article 3 of the MCBA: requiring the Agency to maintain an effective, cooperative labormanagement relationship with the Union;
• Article 17 of the MCBA: prohibiting the Agency from interfering with the right to union
representation;
• Article 48, Section 2 of the MCBA: permitting union representatives to designate a union
representative at their home station and transfer unused official time to that
representative.
• Any and all other relevant articles, laws, rules, regulations, customs, and past practices
not herein specified.
Remedies Requested
To remedy the above violations, the Union asks that the Agency do the following:
1
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1. To immediately grant the requests of designated union officials to designate a union
representative at their home station and transfer unused official time to that
representative;
2. To cease and desist further violations of the MCBA;
3. To fully comply with its contractual obligations under Articles 3, 17, and 48 of the
MCBA;
4. To make whole any employee adversely affected by the Agency’s violations, including,
but not limited to, the restoration of leave or straight time pay with interest and attorney’s
fees;
5. To agree to any and all other remedies appropriate in this matter.
Time Frame and Contact
This is a National Grievance, and the time frame for resolution of this matter is not
waived until the matter is resolved or settled. The undersigned is the designated representative
for this grievance. If you have any questions regarding this National Grievance, please contact
the undersigned at AFGE Office of the General Counsel.

_______________________________
Christopher Zatratz
Staff Counsel, National VA Council
Office of the General Counsel
AFGE, AFL-CIO
80 F Street, NW
Washington, DC 20001
Tel: 202-639-6424
Fax: 202-379-2928
christopher.zatratz@afge.org
cc:

Alma L. Lee, President, AFGE/NVAC
William Wetmore, Chairperson, Grievance and Arbitration Committee, AFGE/NVAC
Thomas Dargon, Jr., Supervisory Attorney, AFGE/NVAC
Thomas McGuire, Deputy Director, VA/LMR
Roy Ferguson, Staff Director, VA/LMR
Donald Stephen, Director of Interventions & Training, VA/LMR
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Christopher Zatratz

From: Lapham, Kevin <Kevin.Lapham@va.gov>
Sent: Friday, May 14, 2021 2:41 PM
To: Parauda, Martina <Martina.Parauda@va.gov>
Cc: Atkinson, Dorothy <Dorothy.Atkinson@va.gov>; Evans, Tamese <Tamese.Evans@va.gov>; 'Ena Thompson-Judd'
<enaadams@aol.com>
Subject: Official Time Transfer - Ena.pdf
Please see the attached.
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NY/NJ VA COUNCIL# 246
179-00 Linden Blvd
Jamaica, NY 11425
(718) 526-1000

To: Martina Parauda
Director
VA New York Harbor Healthcare System
Director Parauda:
In accordance with Article 48 Section 2 of the VA/AFGE Master Agreement, as the 2nd
District Representative, I am designating Kevin Lapham to act as my alternate and
transferring the full 50% Official Time that I am entitled to, all of which is unused, to
him.

Executive Board Members
Ena Judd
President
George Jones
1st Vice President
Kevin Lapham
2nd Vice President

This action is effective upon your approval.

Cheryl Jones
Treasurer

Please notify his supervisor and the Human Resources Department of this action and
have them make arrangements to release him as appropriate.

Altericke Brinkley
Secretary

Thank you for your attention to this matter.
Ena Thompson-Judd
Ena Thompson-Judd
President
AFGE/NVAC NY/NJ Council 246

Christopher Zatratz
From: Atkinson, Dorothy <Dorothy.Atkinson@va.gov>
Sent: Tuesday, May 18, 2021 4:55 PM
To: Lapham, Kevin <Kevin.Lapham@va.gov>; :nvac246@gmail.com <nvac246@gmail.com>; 'Ena Thompson-Judd'
<enaadams@aol.com>
Cc: Evans, Tamese <Tamese.Evans@va.gov>
Subject: RE: Official Time Transfer - Ena.pdf
Good afternoon Kevin/Ena,
Please see attached response from the Director based on your request.
Thank you

Dorothy Atkinson
Senior Strategic Business Partner (SSBP)
Assistant Human Resources Officer (AHRO)

Human Resources
U.S. Department of Veterans Affairs
New York/New Jersey Healthcare System
VISN 2
Phone: 718-836-6600 @4522/3662
Mobil: 347-387-0424
Fax: 718 -567-4065
Email: Dorothy.atkinson@va.gov
How was your HR service today? Please take a few moments to complete the HR Customer Satisfaction Survey
at the link below:
https://survey.htm.va.gov/Perseus/se/2EA0F67955DDF53B

From: Lapham, Kevin <Kevin.Lapham@va.gov>
Sent: Friday, May 14, 2021 2:41 PM
To: Parauda, Martina <Martina.Parauda@va.gov>
Cc: Atkinson, Dorothy <Dorothy.Atkinson@va.gov>; Evans, Tamese <Tamese.Evans@va.gov>; 'Ena Thompson-Judd'
<enaadams@aol.com>
Subject: Official Time Transfer - Ena.pdf
Please see the attached.
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May 18, 2021
Ena Thompson-Judd
VA Council Representative
AFGE 2nd District
Department of Veterans Affairs
New York Harbor Healthcare System
179-00 Linden Blvd.
Jamaica, NY 11425
Sent via electronic mail to ena.thompson-judd@va.gov / nvac246@gmail.com
Ms. Thompson-Judd,
I am in receipt of your letter received in my office on Friday, May 14, 2021, where you state “In
accordance with Article 48 Section 2 of the VA/AFGE Master Agreement, as the 2nd District
Representative, I am designating Kevin Lapham to act as my alternate and transferring the full
50% Official Time that I am entitled to, all of which is unused, to him”.
Please be advised in line with 5 USC 7131 official time applies to any employee under this chapter
shall be authorized official time for such purposes, including attendance at impasse proceeding,
during the time the employee otherwise would be in a duty status.
You are not currently a government employee, as such, there is no official time that can be
transferred. Article 48 states that these national representatives may designate a union
representative at their home station and transfer unused official time to that representative to
perform the duties of the position for which official time is authorized. Since you are not an
employee, you do not have a home station and you are not entitled to official time.

Martina A. Parauda
Director

